
Integrated Health, Wellbeing and Care 
Commissioning Joint Committee 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Integrated Health, Wellbeing and Care 
Commissioning Joint Committee to be held as follows for the transaction of the 
business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 20 February 2019

TIME: 3.00 pm

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Request for Approval - Contract Extensions - Age UK and The 
Stroke Association 

(Pages 1 - 8)

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



                     

Date of Meeting 20 February 2019
Agenda Item No 1

                                                          

Page 1 of 7

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL AND NHS SALFORD CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP
 
INTEGRATED ADULT HEALTH, WELLBEING AND CARE COMMISSIONING 
JOINT COMMITTEE (ICJC)

AGENDA ITEM NO 1 

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information  

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING JOINT COMMITTEE (ICJC): 20 February 2019

REPORT OF: Service and Finance Group

DATE OF PAPER: 20 February 2019
SUBJECT: Community Stroke and Age UK Contract 

extensions
IN CASE OF QUERY 
PLEASE CONTACT:

Paul Walsh, Head of Integrated 
Commissioning, 0161 212 4844

PURPOSE OF PAPER:

To seek approval to:

a) Provide a 3 year contract extension to the Community Stroke Service contract 
delivered by The Stroke Association, on the basis that the service specification 
requires delivery by a specialist service provider,

b) Provide a 1 year extension to the Age UK Salford contract, with an option to further 
extend by an additional 1 year, in order to redesign the current service alongside 
the current programme of Health and Social Care transformation.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



                     

Date of Meeting 20 February 2019
Agenda Item No 1

                                                          

Page 2 of 7

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS?

Service quality, Service sufficiency, Service 
redesign, Improved pathways, Improved service 
integration

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW CAN 
THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

To ensure commissioning investment 
supports the development of new models of 
care by alignment with the existing 
transformation programme
To secure best values for commissioning 
investment through service remodelling

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

Not applicable at this stage

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS?  IF SO WHAT ARE THEY AND 
HOW DOES THIS PAPER REDUCE 
THEM?

Not applicable

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

Not applicable

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

Stroke pathway services

Community/Neighbourhood Health and 
Social Care services

Footnote:

Members of ICJC will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 2



Date of Meeting 20 February 2019
Agenda Item No 1

Page 3 of 7

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 

X Consideration for an EA will be 
given as part of the service 
redesign for the Age UK services

Legal Advice Sought X Tony Hatton – 11 March 2019
Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)

X Service and Finance Group – 8 
January 2019

Decision to recommend to 
ICJC

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 3



Date of Meeting 20 February 2019
Agenda Item No 1

Page 4 of 7

SUBJECT AREA

1  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Commissioner and Contracting colleagues reviewed the scorecards within the CCG’s 
procurement policy to support recommendations in relation to the Age UK and Stroke 
Association contracts that are due to expire March 2019.

 Age UK – Service and Finance Group confirmed support for waiving the 
procurement process for this contract a period of at least 12 months. This will allow 
proposed development and testing of potential re-design work to be undertaken with 
the current provider.

 Stroke Association – Service and Finance Group confirmed support for waiving the 
procurement process for this contract. It is proposed to offer a new 3 year contract 
term with the existing provider.

2. Process used to inform recommendations

2.01 The process used to inform recommendation made by Service and Finance Group 
for the ‘tender/ no tender’ recommendations within this report was the same for all of the 
contracts detailed within the report – i.e. Age UK (Dementia), Age UK (Social Rehabilitation), 
Age UK (Hospital Aftercare) – these were reviewed as one overarching contract – and The 
Stroke Association.

2.02 This involved commissioner and contracting colleagues completing 2 questionnaires 
within the CCG’s procurement policy, giving rationale for answers where appropriate and 
possible. 

2.03 The first: ‘Key Considerations Prior to Completing the Tendering Healthcare’ 
scorecard, lists 4 questions which are deemed to be critical within the decision making 
process. Guidance within the policy suggests that any ‘red’ answer “increases the likelihood 
that procurement exercise should be undertaken.” 

2.04 The second questionnaire: the ‘Tendering Healthcare’ Scorecard’ lists 18 questions; 
each with a potential score of ‘0’ or ‘10’. When adding all of the score together, guidance 
indicates that a total score below 80 would suggest that “there is suitable justification for 
waiving the procurement process”

2.05 Using this information, commissioner and contracting colleagues are able to make 
the recommendations below.

Page 4



Date of Meeting 20 February 2019
Agenda Item No 1

Page 5 of 7

3. Age UK (Expiring March 2019)

3.01 ‘Key Considerations Prior to Completing the Tendering Healthcare’ Scorecard 
– Age UK: Commissioner and contracting colleagues answered ‘no’ to 3 out of the 4 
questions on this questionnaire (see below) – i.e. 3 ‘green’ answers; 1 ‘red’.

3.02 Though the guidance suggests that any ‘red’ answer increases the likelihood that 
procurement exercise should be undertaken, the majority of answers suggested that 
completion of the full ‘Tendering Healthcare’ scorecard should still be carried out to give a 
better understanding of the risks of waiving procurement. 

3.03 ‘Tendering Healthcare’ Scorecard – Age UK: Commissioner and contracting 
colleagues answered each question within the second scorecard. This resulted in a score of 
80, which is on the threshold of 80; suggesting that waiving a procurement exercise may be 
justifiable.

3.04 Risks – The key risks to waiving procurement are:

i. The value of the contract – This is a question in both questionnaires and is 
therefore a key consideration. The existing annual contract value of all services  
(£528k)  is above the current EU threshold, therefore any new contract, irrespective 
of length, would also be above that threshold.

ii. Fitness and potential future changes to specification – Commissioners have no 
immediate concerns regarding current delivery of services. However, potential 
efficiencies have been identified that may result in material changes to both the 
specification and value of services in the future. However, exploration of any 
potential changes will require the support of the existing provider to carry out.

3.05 The services commissioned through the contract are specialist and are delivered by 
a specialist service provider. Commissioners are demonstrating an integrated approach to 
procurement to ensure continuity of service quality, sufficiency and service redesign.

3.06 Whilst the Age UK Salford contracts were not included in the scope of the 
transformation programme a number of themes have emerged from the transformation work, 
particular with regard to the role of the VSCE sector in the development Neighbourhood 
delivery model. There are further opportunities to align the commissioning investment 
currently within the Age UK Salford contracts to the Neighbourhood delivery models to 
support the Locality Plan objectives of Ageing Well and support older people to maintain 
wellbeing within a coordinated community-focussed system.

3.07 The commissioning principles to improve outcomes, improve experience and drive 
efficiencies within the system sit at the heart of the approaches to consider the next steps 
with the Age UK Salford Contract. The three contracts do not sit in isolation of the care 
system and it is important to consider the interplay between the Age UK Salford contracts 
and the care system within which they operate. It could be seen that the greatest opportunity 
to shape the commissioning investment could be realised through aligning the re-shaping of 
the commissioning investment in the Age UK Salford contracts to the wider development of 
the Neighbourhood approaches. In doing so this would enable a significant VSCE sector 

Page 5



Date of Meeting 20 February 2019
Agenda Item No 1

Page 6 of 7

provider to become part of the system the helps to create ageing-well wellbeing/preventative 
services that coalesce with health and social care partners.

3.08 Any approach to a collaborative service redesign that aligned timescales to the 
transformation programme would not eliminate the need to consider retender at some point 
in the future and this would be considered through the normal contract/commissioning cycle 
for the CCG.

3.09 Recommendation – Based on the answers given within the ‘Tendering Healthcare’ 
Scorecard and given the need for a period of stability to allow development and testing of 
potential re-design work, ICJC is asked to consider waiving the procurement process for this 
contract for at least 12 months, with a further option to extend for an additional year; 
effectively allowing the existing contract to be extended.

4. The Stroke Association (Expiring March 2019)

4.1 ‘Key Considerations Prior to Completing the Tendering Healthcare’ Scorecard 
– Stroke Association: Commissioner and contracting colleagues answered ‘no’ to 3 out of 
the 4 questions on this questionnaire (see below) – i.e. 3 ‘green’ answers; 1 ‘red’.

4.2 Though the guidance suggests that any ‘red’ answer increases the likelihood that 
procurement exercise should be undertaken, the majority of answers suggested that 
completion of the full ‘Tendering Healthcare’ scorecard should still be carried out to give a 
better understanding of the risks of waiving procurement. 

4.3 ‘Tendering Healthcare’ Scorecard – Stroke Association: Commissioner and 
contracting colleagues answered each question within the second scorecard. This resulted 
in a score of 50, which is below the threshold of 80 and suggests that waiving of a 
procurement exercise is justifiable. 

4.4 Risks – The key risk to waiving procurement is:

i. The value of the contract – This is a question in both questionnaires and is 
therefore a key consideration. The existing annual contract value (£139k)  is 
above the current EU threshold, therefore any new contract, irrespective of 
length, would also be above that threshold.

4.5 Recommendation – Based on the answers given within the ‘Tendering Healthcare’ 
Scorecard, ICJC is asked to consider waiving the procurement process for this contract. It is 
proposed to offer a new 3 year contract term with the existing provider.

Page 6



Date of Meeting 20 February 2019
Agenda Item No 1

Page 7 of 7

7. KEY DECISION
Yes

8. LEGAL ADVICE – provided by Tony Hatton
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the execution of 
works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its 
own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract may be subject to legal 
challenge from an aggrieved provider. 

The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract being 
awarded. Here the periods proposed for the agreements are 12 months and three years, so 
relatively long, and for a reasonably high value. However, the providers appear to be within a 
very limited market to provide the services, which will realise the benefits set out at section 3 
of the report.

Direct awards of contracts may be made in limited circumstances, set out at regulation 32 of 
the PCR (“Negotiated procedure without prior publication”) such that reg 32 (2)(b)(ii) 
confirms use of the procedure:

“…where the works, supplies or services can be supplied only by a particular economic 

operator for any of the following reasons:—

 (ii)  competition is absent for technical reasons,

 but only….where no reasonable alternative or substitute exists and the absence of 

competition is not the result of an artificial narrowing down of the parameters of the 

procurement;”
Assuming the Council is able to satisfy that test should any challenge materialise, the risk of 
any such challenge being successful may be regarded as low.

Similarly the PCR permit extensions to be made to current contracts under regulation 72, 
which permits variations in limited circumstances, which could be argued in these 
circumstances .

9. RECOMMENDATION

9.1 To approve a 3 year contract extension to the Community Stroke Service contract 
delivered by The Stroke Association, on the basis that the service specification requires 
delivery by a specialist service provider.

9.2 To approve a 1 year extension, with an option to further extend by an additional 1 
year, to the Age UK contract in order to redesign the current service alongside the current 
programme of Health and Social Care transformation.

Paul Walsh
Head of Integrated Commissioning, 
Salford City Council/Salford Clinical Commissioning Group

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Request for Approval - Contract Extensions - Age UK and The Stroke Association

